
UNITED STATES 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY . .? 

REGION 8 
Docket No. FIPRA-08-2007-0014 

In the Matter 01': ) 

) 
OniniLytics, Inc. 1 PENALTY COMPLAINT AND NOTICE OF 
5450 W. Wiley Post Way. 1 OPPORTUNITY FOR IIEARING 
Salt Lake City, Utah 841 15 1 

1 
Respondent ) 

INTRODIJCTION (.IIJRISDICTION~ 

1.  This civil administrative enforcement action is authorized by Congress in section 
14(a) of the 17ederal Inscclicide. Fungicide and Rodcnticidc Act ("FIFRA"). 7 1I.S.C. section 
1 361(n). 'fhc rules Ibr this proceeding are the "Consolidated Rules of I'racrice Governing thc 
Administrative Asscssmcnt of Civil Penalties, Issuance of Compliance or Corrective Action 
Orders and the Rcvocntion. 'l'erniination or Suspension of Permits ("N~r1c.s ofP~.rrclicc")," 
40 C.F.R. part 22, a copy of which is enclosed. 

2. Thc undersigned EI'A officials have been properly delegated the authority to issue 
this action. 

3. I P A  allcgcs that liespondcnt has violated FIFKA by selling a mishninded 
pesticide on four occasions and by producing a pesticide in an unregislcrcd producer 
cstablishmcnt and proposes the assessment of a civil penalty. as more fully explained below. 
I:IFRA authori7cs the assessment o f a  civil penalty for violations of FIFRA. 7 [J.S.C. section 
1361(3) 

NOTICE OF OPPOliTUNITY FOR A HEARING 

4. Respondent has thc right to a public hcaring before an administrative law judgc 
(AL.1) to disagree with (1) any fact statcd (alleged) by EPA in the complaint. or (2) the 
approprialcness oStlie proposed penalty 

>. '1.0 disagree with the complaint and asscrt your right to a hearing. Respondent 
must (ill: a written answer (and one copy) with the Regional Hcaring Clcrk (1595 Wynltoop 
Slrcct; Iknver, Colorxlo 80202-1 129) within 30 days of receiving this complaint. 'l'hc answer 
must clearly admit. deny or explain the factual allegations o f the  complaint. thc grounds for any 
defense, the facts you may dispute, and your spccific request for a public hearing. Please sce 
section 22.1 5 of h c  Rnlc.~ of'l'rtrctice for a complete description of what must be in your answer. 



FAILURE TO FILE AN ANSWER AND REQlJEST FOR HEARING WITHIN 30 DAYS 
MAY WAIVE RESPONDENT'S IIIGI-IT TO DISAGREE WITH THE ALLEGATIONS 
OR PIIOPOSEI) PENALTY, AND RESlJLT IN A DEFAULT .JUDGMENT AND 
ASSESSMENT OF THE PENALTY PKOI'OSKD IN THE COMPLAINT. 

6 liespondents may resolve this proceeding at any time by paying the specific 
penalty ($27.300) proposed in the complaint. Such payment need not contain any response to, 
or admission o t  the allegations in the complaint. Such paymcnt constitutes a waiver of 
rcspondcnt's right to contcst thc allegations and to appeal the final order. See section 22.18 of 
thc Rules o/'l'rrrc/ice Tor a full explanation orthe quick resolution process. This paymcnt shall 
be made by remitting a cashier's or certilied check for that amount, payable to Treasurer, Unitcd 
States of America," lo: 

U .  S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Fines and Penalties 

Cincinnati Finance Center 
P. 0. Box 979077 
St. Louis. M 0  63 197-9000 

SETTLEMENT NEGOTIATIONS 

7. EPA encourages discussing wlicther cases can be settled Ihrougll inlbrnlal 
scttlcnicnt conferences. If you want to pursue the possibility of settling this matter, or have any 
other questions, contact Dana 1. Stotsky. lkq., at 1-800-227-8917; extension 6905. 303-312- 
6005, or the address hclow. Pfense rrote that cn/1;11g the nttornyy or rqtreut i r i~  n settlement 
conference does NOT delnj~ ilre ruririirig rfthe30 rlrry period,fiwfilin,o rrri rrnswer nrid 

I. Pesticide is defined by 40 C.F.R. 5 152.3(s) as "any substance or mixture of 
substances intendcd for prcventing, destroying, repelling, or mitigating any pest, .. or intended for use as a plant regulator, defoliant, or desiccant . . . . 

11. Mishrnnrlcd is dcfined by FIFRA as "Misbranded ...( 1 )  [a] pesticide is misbranded 
i f- 

(A)  ils labeling bears any statement. design. or graphic representation rclativc 
thcreto or to its ingredients which is hlse or misleading in any particular; 
(I;) any word, statement, or other information required by or under authority of 
this subchapter to appear on the Iabcl or labeling is not prominently placed 



thereon with such conspicuousness (as compared with other words, statements, 
designs. or graphic matter in the labeling) and in such terms as to render i t  likely 
to bc read and understood by the ordinary individual under customary conditions 
ofpurchase and use ...." 7 U.S.C. sections 136(q)(l)(A) and (E). 

Ill. Prodlrcrr nrrdprodrrce are defined by F I F M  as ..." The term "producer" means 
the person who manufactures, prepares, compounds, propagates. or processes any 
pesticiclc or device or active ingrcdicnt uscd in producing a pesticide. The term 
"prod~lce" means to manufacture. prepare. compound. propagate. or process any 
pcsticidc or device or active ingredient used in producing a pesticide. 'l'he dilution 
by individuals of forniulated pesticides for thcir own use and according to the 
directions on registered labels shall not of itself result in such individuals being 
included in the delinition of"producer" Ihr the purposcs ofthis subchapter." 7 
U.S.C. section 136(w). 

IV. Estnblislr~~tmi is delined by I W I A  as ..."' rhe term "establishnicnt" means any 
place where a pesticide or device or active ingredient used in producing a 
pesticide is produced, or held, for distribution or sale." 7 U.S.C. section section 
l36(dd). 

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS 

At all times pertinent to this conlplaint, the following general allegations apply: 

8. EPA has jurisdiction of this matter under section 14(a1(1) ol'I:IFRA, 7 U.S.C. 
section 1361(a)(I). 

9. Ilesponcient, Omni1,yties. Inc., located at 5450 W. Wiley Post Way. Salt Lake 
City, Utah 841 16, is a "person" within the meaning of Section 2(s) of F I F M ,  7 U.S.C. Section 
136(s), and is therefore sub,ject to regulation. 

Counts 1-4 
(Four Salcs of Mishrantlcd Pesticide) 

10. Respondent obtained a pesticide registration Ibr its product "Agriphage" on 
1)cccmber 9, 2005 with the EPA Registration Number 67986-1. 

1 1. The registration identified in the preceding paragraph spccilied at least two 
conditions that must appear on all labeling on all packaging of "Agriphagc," which is: 

I .  DO NOT ENTER OR ALLOW WORKER ENTRY INTO TREATED 
AREAS DUIIlNG THE RESTRICTED 1:NTRY IN'TEIIVAL (REI) 01: 12 



IIOUI1S; and, 2. 1'1'E [PLXSONAL, I'ROI'EC'fIVE EQIJII'MENTJ 
KIIQUIRED FOR BAR[,Y ENTRY 1'0 TREATED AREAS TIIAT IS 
I'EI1MITTED UNDER TIHE WORKER PROTECTION STANDARD 
AND '1'1-IAT INVOI,VES CONTACT WITH ANYTHING 'I'IIAT I IAS 
BEEN TREATED. SUCH AS PI,ANTS, SOIL, OR WATER IS: - 
C0VEMLL.S OVER LONG-SLEEVED SI-IIRI' AND LONG I'AN'fS, 
- SOCKS. - SI~IOES. 

12. On May 2,2006. Respondent sold its pesticide product "Agriphage" to I ligh 
REDACTED Farms, documented by Rcspondent's Invoice Number 353 1. 

3 On May 3,2006. Respondent sold its pesticide product "Agriphage" to 
REDACTED Plant Co.. documented by Rcspondcnt's Invoice Number 3535. 

14. On May 2. 2006, Respondent sold its pesticide product "Agriphage" lo IJC Davis 
Dept. of Plan1 Pathology, documented by Rcspondent's Invoice Number 3532. 

15. On May 4. 7006. Respondent sold its pesticide product "Agriphage" to Tommy 
REDACTED Farms, docu~nented by Rcspondent's Invoice Number 3538. 

I6 I'or cach oTlhc four salec identified in Paragraphs 12-1 5 above, the label materials 
that accompanied the pesticide containcr(s) of Respondent's pesticide "Agriphage" did not 
include the cautionary statements Sor Restricted Entry Intervals or the cautionary statements for 
I'crsonal I'rotcctivc Equipment which arc required conditions of Rcspondcnt's pesticidc 
registration Sol ~ t s  pesticide "Agriphage. 

17. At !he time the Sour salcs identilicd in Paragraphs 12-15 above occurred. the 
statement on Kcspondcnt's website for its product "Agriphage," did not include the required 
cautionary statcmcnts for Restricted Entry Intervals and also there were no Personal Protective 
Ikl~~ipment required stotcments for use oS"Agripl1age." 

18. Rcspondcnt, by selling its pesticide "Agriphage" as described in Paragraphs 12-15 
abovc, without required cautionary statements on its labeling or as statements made in 
association with its sale (webpage), has sold a misbranded pesticide rour times, in violation of 
FII'RA section 12(a)(l)(E). 7 U.S.C. section 136j(a)(l)(E). 



Count 5 
(One Count of Producing a Pesticide in an 

Unregistered Pesticide Producing Establishment) 

19. IiPA's regulations require that all pesticides bc manufactured at rcgistcrcd 
pesticide producing cstablisliments. 1:II:RA section 12(a)(2)(L) and section 7(a). 7 U.S.C. 
section 176/'(;1)(2)(L) and 7 U.S.C. section 136e(a). 

20. On or b e h e  the dates associated with the sales of Respondent's pesticide 
"Agriphage" and identitied in Paragraphs 12-15 above. Respondent had not registered any 
pcsticidc producing establishment. 

21. Respondent sold its pesticidc "Agriphage" at least four times, by the sales 
idcntilictl in Paragraphs 12-1 5 above, where such pesticide was made or produced not in any 
 registered pesticide producing establishment. 

22. Respondcnt, by selling a pesticide made or produced not in a registered pesticide 
producing cstablishmcnt, has violated FIFRA. 7 U.S.C. section 136/(a)(2)(I2) and 7 U.S.C. 
section 136e(a). 

I'IIOPOSED CIVIL PENALTY 

23. For pcsticidc registrants and producers, 1:IT:RA authorizes the assessment ol'a 
civil pcnalty oTup to $6.500 for each offense of the Act and the Debt Collection Improvement 
Act of 1906. FI12KA rcq~lircs IYA to consider the appropriateness of the pcnalty to the size of 
the business, the effect on the person's ability to continue in business, and the gravity ofthc 
violation. CI'A has established policies that provide a rational and consistent method for 
applying statutory Ihctors to tlie circ~mstances of specific cases. A narrative description ofthc 
reasoning behind the penalty proposed in this casc is attachcd to this complaint, along with 
copies ofthe EPA policies. For thc five FlFKA violations allegcd in this complaint, EI'A 
proposes a penalty of 527,300. The pcnalty narrative and calculation can bc found in 
complainant's Exhibit Number 1. 

24. Tlic AL.1 is not bound by EPA's penalty policy or tlie penalty proposed by 
Complainant, and may assess a penalty above the proposcd amount, up to the maximum amount 
authorized in the statute. In this casc. the maximum would be $32.500. 

To discuss settlement or ask any questions you may havc about this process, pleasc 
contact Dana J .  Stotsky, Scnior Enforcement Attorney, at 1-800-227-8917; cxt. 312-6905, or at 
tlic address bclow. 



lJnited States Environmental Protection Agency 
Region 8, Oflice of Enforcement, Compliance and 
Environmental Justice, Complainant 
1595 Wynkoop Strcet (ENF-I,) 
I>enver. CO 80202-1 129 

Technical Enforcement Program , ,' 

Legal Enforcement Program 
U.S. EPA Region 8 
1595 Wynkoop Street 
Mail Code: 8ENP-L 
Denver, Colorado 80202-1 146 
Colorado Bar # 1471 7 
I'hone: (303)-3 12-6905 
I'AX (303) 3 12-6953 
stotskv.dan~lcii,e~~a.xov 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

The undersigned hereby certifies that the original and one copy of thc COMPLAIN'I', 
AND NOTICE 01: OPPORTUNITY FOR IIEARING with Exhibits were hand-carried to thc 
Regional 1 lcaring Clerl~. CPA Region 8, 1595 Wynkoop Street; Denver, Colorado 80202- 1 129, 
and that a true copy oftlic same was sent via Certificd Mail to: 

Mr. Justin C. Rebcr, President 
OmniLytics, Inc. 
5450 W. Wiley Post Way, 
Salt 1,altc City, lltah 841 16 


